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RECEIVED

FEDERAL ELECTION
COMMISSION
2011 SEP 16 PMI2: 10
BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
CELA
In the Matter of )
)
Gregory Brown for Congress ( Pre- ) MUR 6314
Probable Cause Conciliation) )
CER ATION

I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election
Commission, do hereby certify that on September 15, 2011, the Commission.
decided b_y a vote of 4-0 to take the following actions in MUR 6314:

.1, Accept the conciliation agreement with Gregory Brown for Congress
and Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer, as
recommended in the General Counsel’s Memorandum dated
September 6, 2611.

2. Approve the appropriate letter.

3. Close the file.

Commissioners Banerly, Hunter, McGahn II, and Weintraub voted

* affimatively for the decision. Commissioners Petersen and Walther did not vote.

Attest:

nbte 15,

Date

Shawn Woodhead Werth
Secretary and Clerk of the Commission
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RECEivED

FEDERAL ELEC
COAHISSL5TION

BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 201/MAR 18 AN yj: 46
In the Matter of ) CEL A
. )
Gregory Brown, Gregory Brown for ) MUR 6314
Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her )
official capacity as treasurer (RAD Ref )
10L-09) )

CERTIFICATION

I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election

Commission, do hereby certify that on March 17, 2011, the Commission

decided by a vote of 5-1 to take the following actions in MUR 6314/RAD Ref

10L-09:
1.

2.

vome_Hbl

Open 2 MUR in RR 10L-09 and merge it into MUR 6314.

Find reason to believe that Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol
Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C.
§§ 433(a), 434(a), and 434(b), and 11 C.F.R. § 104.12.

. Find no reason to believe that Gregory Brown violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 434(a) and close the file as to him.

Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in the
First General Counsel’s Report dated March 7, 2011.
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Federal Election Commission
MUR 6314 and RADRef 10L-09
March 16, 2011

7. Approve the appropriate letters.
Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, Petersen, Walther, and Weintraub voted

affirmatively for the decision. Commissioner McGaim I dissented.

Attest:

% s /7, ol OZ
Date

Shawn Woodhead Werth
Secretary and Clerk of the Commission

Page 2 of 2
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 26463

Eleazer R. Carter, Esq. ’
The Carter Law Firm IWIZSZMI

P.0. Box 2073
Columbia, SC 29202
RE: MURG6314
Gregory Brown
Gregory Brown for Congress and
Carol Bausinger, in her official
capacity as Treasurer
Dear Mr. Carter:

On June 22, 2010, the Federal Election Commission (“Commission”) notified your -
clients, Gregory Brown and Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her official
capacity as treasurer, of a complaint alleging that your clients violated the Federal Election
Campaign Aci of 1971, as ameniiad (tiln Act”). A sapy of the complaimnt wves prawided to your
clionts at that time.

On November 4, 2010, the Commission notified you that in the normal course of carrying
out its supervisory responsibilities it ascertained information suggesting that Gregory Brown for
Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated the Act, and the
mmuwfomudedmtheOEeeomeudemnlfo:pombleenfomemenucﬁm. The
Commission also previded you with a copy of the seferral gt thiat titme.

OnMﬁﬂh 17, 2011, afver raviewing ths cestiplaint, the referra}, and your caents’
resnnmtag, the Cemnmiatian found reasos te belawe timt Gregety Bromm fiir Cangress and Casol
Bantinger, in her official capesiiy as trearanar, violted 2 U.S.C. §§ 433(a), 434(a), and 434(b),
and 11 C.F.R. § 104.12, provisions of the Act and Commission regulations. At that same time,
the Commission also faund there is no reason to belinve that Gregory Brown violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 434(a). Enclosed is the Factual and Legal Analysis setting forth the basis for the
Commission’s determination.
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Eleazer R. Carter
MUR 6314

Page 2

We have also enclosed a brief description of the Commission’s procedures for handling
possible violations of the Act. In addition, please note that you have a legal obligation to
preserve all documents, records, and materials relating to this matter until such time as you are
notified that the Commission has closed its file in this matter. See 18 U.S.C. § 1519. In the
meantiree, this matter wiil smmain confidential in asconhmce with 2 U.S.C. §§ 437g(a)(4)(B) and
437g(6)(12)XA), unless ysu notify the Comrwigsion in writlng that you wish the investigation to
be made public.

We look forward ta your response. If you have any questions, please contact Murgaret
Ritzert, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650 or (800) 424-9530,

On behalf of the Commission,

Enclosures -
Factual and Legal Analysi
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
RESPONDENTS:  Gregory Brown for Congress and - MUR: 6314
Carol Bausingey, in her official .
capagity as treasuver
Gregory Brown

L = GENERATION OF MATTER

This mutter was generattsd based on information ascertained by the Federal Election
Commission (“Conmiasion”) ixthe nornml cewsss of sarrying out its suparvisary
responsibitities, see 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(2), and by a complaiot filed with the Commission by
Melanie Sloan and Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington.
II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A.  Factual Background

Gregory Brown was a candidate in the June 8, 2010, South Carolina primary election,
seeking the Democratic nomination to represent the state’s Sixth Congressional District in the
U.S. House of Representatives. On February 1, 2010, Mr. Brown ﬁled a Statement of Candidacy
with the Commission that designated Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausimger, in her
official capicity as treasmur, (“Cotisnittes”) s hs principal campeign committee. The
Co;nlnitlm filed its Statsment of Organization an April 26, 2010.

The Committes bas filed the fallowing disclosure reports with the Commissian:
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MUR 6305/RR 10L-09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis
Page 2 of 7

Table 1. Reports Filed with the Commission
Date Repurt
6/10/10 _ | April Quarterly Report
6/10/10 | July Quarterly Report
6/11/10 | July Quarterly Report(Amended)
6/20/10 | April Quarterly Report (Amended)
6/20/10 | July Quartérly Report (Amended)
7/28/10 | Termination Report
11/7/10 | Termination Report
1/4/11 Termination Report
2/9/11 Termination Repont

The Committee attempted to terminate after Mr. Brown lost the primary election, but the Reports

Analysis Divisicn (“RAD”) informed the Committee that it needed to resolve outstanding
discrepancies in its reports before it could terminate.
1. MURG34
Complainant alleges that Respondents knowingly and willfully violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 434(2)(2)(A)(), (iii) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(1)(D), (2)(i) by failing to file both the 2010 April
Quarterly and 12-Day Pre-Primary Reports.

" Respondents admit that the disclosure reports were untimely. Respondents maintain that
any deleys in filing the required reports were “not the result of any intentional or willful
misconduct,” and thay Muve filed all requirad sopurtse Sioe Raspatse. Without providing amy
specifie laformntion, Respandents clvim that they mistakenly relied oz information pravided by
the state palitical party. They also claim, again witbout providing any specific information, to
have relied on information the Commission provided to them regarding filing requirements.’
Respondents further claim that they relocated their campaign headquarters, which resulted in lost
mail and “temporary loss of full communication.” /d.

! There is no record of the Committee contacting RAD until July 27, 2010, after it had filed the Amended
2010 April and July Quasterly Raports.
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MUR 6305/RR 10L~09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis
Page 3 of 7

1 2. RR 10L-09

N

On July 1, 2010, RAD sent the Committee two Requests for Additional Information
(“RFAI's”) regarding the 2010 April and July Quarterly Reports, respectively. The Committee
has not yet filed a response to these RFAI's; however, the Committee’s treasurer contacted a

w

RAD Analyst on July 27, 2010, to inquire about the process for termimating. Between September
3, 2010, ami Seprember 28, 2010, RAD Analysts made several atzmpts to aentuct tie

N SN b

Comugiitun t retify them of potentini Connaistiea artion. Kewevar, as the Committee’s phars:

numbers and e-mail addresses were ne longer in service, RAD left a message at Mr. Brown’s
9 business, Keystone Enterprises, which was not returned.
10  OnOctober 18, 2010, RAD referred the Committee to the Office of General Counsel for

11  the following reporting violations:

12 o Failing to correct an initial cash balance of $10,000 on its 2010 April Quarterly
13 Report, the first disclosure report filed with the Commission. Both the original
14 and Amended April Quarterly Reports reflect this balance, and neither includes a
15 . supporting schedule discloaing the source of this initial balance.

16

17 o Failing to correct a negative ending cash-on-hand balance on its April 2010

18 Quarterly Report. The April Quarterly Repert filed on June 10, 2010, ciscloses a
19 negative ending eash-on-hand Yalgaee of $35,1064.65; the amended repurt, filed
20 ten days later, discloses a negative ending cash-on-hand balance of $54,118.45.
21

22 e Failing to norrect 4 eash-on-hand balanes dinerepancy betwen tivo cansemutive
23 ' reposts: while the Amanded 2010 April Quastedy Repart disclosue a magative
24 ending cesh-on-hend balance of $54,118.45, the 2010 July Quartexly Repost

25 discloses a beginning cash-on-hand balance of $0.00. The Amended 2010 July
26 Quarterly Reports also disclose a $0.00 beginning cash-on-hand balance.

27 On December 16, 2010, the Cummitiee responded to the notificstion of the referral by

28 contending that the cundisiatn deposited the azigicsd funds in the campaign ascount, and
29 thereafter the campaign ran a negative balance to be paid by the candidate himself. The
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MUR 6305/RR 10L-09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis

Page 4 of 7
Committee acknowledges that there may have been accounting defects, but asserts that there was

no inappropriate use of funds.

B.  Legal Analysis

Under the Federal Election Campaign Act of 19‘( 1, as amended (“the Act™), an individual
becomes a candidate for federal oftice when his or her campaign exceeds $5,000 in contributions
or expenditures. 2 ¥.B.C. § #31(2). Besed en its Amended 2010 April Quarterly Repent, it
apostcs thres the Commrittee exceeded the $5,000 thmshsid on Beleruary 2, 2010, whan it nesde a
$10,000 distmrsament to Steven Fooshe £ Associates for a “campaign questionnaire.”
Accordingly, Mr. Brown was a candidate for federal office on February 2, 2010, which was the
day after the Commission received Mr. Brown's Statement of Candidacy.

1. MUR 6314: Timeliness of Disclosure Reports

Political committee treasurers are required to file reports of receipts and disbursements in
accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 434(a). A principal campaign committee of a candidate for the U.S.
House of Representatives, in any calendar year during which there is a regularly scheduled
deeﬁon!érwhiehi&mdidateismﬁngdﬁomshﬂﬁhquuﬁulymmnolaterﬂmthe
15th day after the last day of ench calendar quamer. 2 U.S.C. § 4I%a)(2)(A)(iii). Furtiernrovs,
such somagittes shall file a pre-elention rapert no lmot tham the 12th day befrus asy olestion in
which such candidide is sasiing eleaion. 2 U.8.C. § 434(a)(2)(A)().

The Committec was required to file the 2010 Aprii Quarterly Report by April 15, 2010.
However, the Committee actually filed this report, which disclosed $400 in receipts and
$45,564.65 in disbursements (later amended to $64,518.45 in disbursements), on June 10, 2010 -

2 Although the Amended 2010 April Quarterly Report discloses the $10,000 disbursement on Fobruary 2,
2010, it disclioses oudy $400 in coatibutiom for the entive repurtiig pedind, in dddititn te thé initial $ 19,000 cash
balance. It is possible that the Committee may have exceeded the $5,000 contribution threshold before February 2,
2010, through sp undisclosed transaction, but there is no infosmation te indicate the natirs or amount of thia
potentia! untlisclosed transaction.
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MUR 6305/RR 10L-09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis
Page 5 of 7

56 days late. Similarly, the Committee was also required to file a report no later than twelve

days before the June 8, 2010, primary in which Mr. Brown was a candidate. This report, due
May 27, 2010, should have covered the period from April 1, 2010, to May 19, 2010. To date, the
Committee has not filed this report; however, the same period of activity was eventually covered
by the 2010 July Quarterly Report, which disclosed $300 in receipts (later amended to $24,300)
and $20,504.72 in disburserments (later amended to $39,366.89) that should have been disclosed
on the pre-primary regost. !

Although the Committee failed to timely file the 2010 April Quarterly Report and failed
to file the 2010 12-Day Pre-Primery Report, there is no information to indicate either that these
violations were knowing and willful, or that the candidate, Mr. Brown, was personally liable for
the Committee’s failure to file timely disclosure reports. Accordingly, the Commission finds
reason to believe that Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity
as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(A)() and (iii). The Commission also finds no reason
to believe that Gregory Brown violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(A)(i) and (jii).

2. RR 10L-09: Content of Disclosure Reperts
The Act requires political committees to report the amount of cash-on-hand ut the

beginning of the reporting period, as well as xlentify sach pemon who makss aggregate
contributions in excess of $200 in an slection cycle. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(1), (3). Commission
regulations further clarify that committees which have cash-on-hand at the time of their
registration shall disclose the sources of such funds on their first report. 11 C.F.R. § 104.12,
Based on the information provided in the referral, the response, and the Committee’s disclosure
reports, it appears that Mr. Brown initially made a personal $10,000 contribution to the
Committee, which the Committee disclosed as an initial cash balance on its first report.



110443203816

10
1

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

21

8 B

MUR 6305/RR 10L-09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis '
Page 6 of 7

However, by failing to disclose Mr. Brown as the source of its initial $10,000 cash balance, the
Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 CF.R. § 104.12.

The Act also requires that reports disclose the amount and nature of outstanding debts
and obligations owed by the political committee. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)X(8). Based on the referral,
the response, and disclosure reports, it appears that the Committee incurred $54,118.45 in debt
ant] reported it as a negative cash balance imitead of as a debt or obligation. By failing to
disclose this $54,118.45 au dabt, the Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8).

Kinally, the discrepancy between the ending cesh-on-hané balance on the Amended 2010
April Quarterly Report (-£54,118.45) and the beginning cash-on-hand balance on the 2010 July
Quarterly Report ($0.00) could indicate that the Committee failed to disclose all contributions,
offsets, and operating expenditures in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(7). However, it appears that
this discrepancy is attributable to the misreported debt discussed above: if the Committee had
reported $54,118.45 as debt on its Amended 2010 April Quarterly Report, its ending cash-on-
hand balance would be $0.00, which would match the beginning cash-on-hand balance reported
in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. Thus, the discrepancy does not appear to be a separate
violstion of 2 U.S.C. § €34(b)(7). Accordingly, the Commission finds reasam to Helieve that
Gregury Brown for Cotigresa and Carol Bausinger, in her official capanity as treasurer, vielated
2U.S.C. § 434(b)X1), (3), and (8) and 11 CF.R § 104.12.

3 Late Statement of Organization

Based on the information in its disclosure reports, the Committee appears to have filed its
Statement of Organization late. A candidate's authorized principal campaign committee is
required to file a Statement of Organization within ten days of designation. 2 U.S.C. § 433(a).
Mr. Brown designated the Committee as his principal campaign committee on February 1, 2010;
therefore, the Committee should have filed its Statement of Organization by February 11, 2010.
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MUR 6305/RR 10L-09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis
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Instead, the Committee filed its Statement of Organization on April 26, 2010 - 74 days late.

Accordingly, the Commission finds reason to believe that Gregory Brown for Congress and
Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 433(a).
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- CELA

TO:' The Commission

FROM: Christopher Hughey
Acting General Counsel

Kathleen Guith
Acting Associate General Counsel for Enforcement

Stephen Gura
Deputy Associate General Counsel

BY: Mark Shonkwiler W’

Assistant General Counsel
Margaret Ritzert /l(ﬂz
Attorney

SUBJECT: MUR 6314 (Gregory Brown for Congress) — Pre-Probable Cause Conciliation

Attached isa conciliation agreement which settles violations of 2 U.S.C.
§8§ 433(a), 434(a), and 434(b) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.12 by Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol
Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer, (“Committee”) involving an undisclosed
contribution and misreported debt on a late-filed disclosure report, as well other late- and non-
filed reports. Attachment 1.
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_ we recommend that the Commission accept the attached conciliation
agreement and close the file.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. Accept the attached conciliation agreement with Gregory Brown for Congress and
Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer.

2. .Approve the appropriate letter.
3. Close the fil.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

(202-588-5020) AND CERTIFIED MAIL
RET. CEIPT REQ D

SEP 15°20M
Melanie Sloan, Executive Director

Center for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington

1400 Eye Street, NW, Suite 450

Washizgton, DC 20005

RE: MURG6314

Dear Ms. Sloan:

This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on
June 16, 2010, concerning Gregory Brown and Gregory Brown for Congress. On March 17,
2011, the Commission found that there is reason to believe Gregory Brown for Congress and
Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer (*the Committee’™), violated 2 U.S.C.
§§ 433(a), 434(a), and 33®b), provisions of the Federal Elaction Campaigs Act of 1971, as
amended, aed 11 C.F.R. § 104.12 of the Commissior’s Regulations. On September 15, 2011, a
congilistion agmenent sigwed by the Committee wis aecapied by the Canmnimmion.

hu miditien, on March 17, 2011, the Commission fauad that there is no reason ta helinve
Gregory Brown vialated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a). Accordingly, the Commission clased the file in this
matter on September 15, 2011.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statemnent of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,416 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General
Counsel’s Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66,132 (Dec. 14, 2009). A copy of the
agreement with the Cemm#etmp is enciared for your information. In addition, a capy of the
Factnrl and I.egal Analysis, which further axplaing the Cosuminsion’s determirmtion, is enclcsed.
If you hawe any questions, please contaet me at (202) 694-1650.

Enclosures
Conciliation Agreement(s)
Factual and Legal Analysis
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

: Q =
In the matter of ) 5 @.

).  MURG314 om 5
) S N

Gregory Brown for Congress and ) 3'3:: =

Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity ) Salif

as treasurer '_33 -

. = =

' CONCILIATION AGREEMENT - F

1&ﬁsﬁuwﬁrumshﬁﬁmbdbyashywﬂ,mwongandnouuhpdemmphhubyhﬁdmﬁeSkun
mdbiﬁmmnmpmbmymsmmwwmn,mdpmwmmﬁm ,
auanlnnmmlbyﬂhthdcuﬂlﬂe@hnn(knn-nsmon(?ChnunusunfOlnthclunnndtxnﬂseof
can'ymsmnmsupmsotymsponslhm;; 'l—]:eCommxssmnﬁ)undmsonmhheveﬂnt
Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer,

.(“Respondents” or “Committee”) violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 433(a), 434(a), and 434(b), and

.11 CFR. § 104.12.

hﬂ)VV‘TTBERIHN)RILlhc(hnnnusnmnand]heIhqunukmﬁ;lunnnglunucqunedln

ummmmﬂnmﬂhodsofcomcﬂuuung;uuutpaihxhngofpnﬂxﬂﬂecmmwtobehewadblunebyaguz
as follows:

~

L mcmmn-jmsﬁcﬁmmmewmmmmmmdfﬁs
prooeeding, and this agreement has the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 2 U.S.C.
§ 375EXAYD. -

L BsmndeMthnmﬁleopmmmnydeMnomshmﬂd
behdmm:nﬂhsnmﬁnn _

1L Respommvomﬁl'yinmmisagzeemmmﬁmthec@mimion.

IV. The pertinent facts in this mattér are as follows:
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MUR6314 (Gregory Brown for Congress)

1. Gregory Brown was a candidate in the June 8, 2010, South Carolina primary election,

. seeking the Democratic nomination to represent the state’s Sixth Congressional District in the

U.S. House of Representatives.

2. Mr. Brown designated Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her
official capacity as treasurer, as his authorized principal campaign committee on February 1,
2010. |

3 ‘l‘leederalElechonCampugnAatole?l asmended,(“theAct”)requesa

candxdate samhnnzedpxmmpalmpugncemmmmﬁleaSmmmtofOrgamuhonmﬂm

ten days of designation, 2 U.S.C. §433(a). As Mr. Brown designated the Committee as his
pﬁdcipdcmpai@wmﬁi&eepnFebfuaql,ZOlO,theComﬂiﬂeeshoﬂdhawﬁledim
Statemient of Organization by February 11, 2010, Instead, the Commitses filed its Statement of
Organization on April 26, 2010 — 74 d;ys late.
Timeliness of Disclosure Reports
4. A principal campaign committee of a candidate for the House of Representatives, in
anycalendarymdunngwhlchdmexsamgulaﬂyscheduxledeleeuonﬁmwhlchthecandldm:s

) seehngelecﬂon,sbaﬂﬁleqmwdymtsmmmm lsmdayaﬁuthelastdayofmh

calondar quaster. 2 U.S.C. § 434(2)2)(A)(ii). Furthcrmore, sueh commitice shall file  pres
election repart n later than the 12thdaybeﬁ>reahye1euimmwhbhmhmdi§m;.ss§ekim
election. 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)2)(A)GQ).

. The 2010 April Quarterly Report was due on April 15, 2010, and its 12-Day Pre-
Primacy Report was due on May 27, 2010, The Comnittee filed its 2010 April Quarterly Report
on June 10, 2010 — 56 days late. The Committee did not file a 2010 12-Day Pm—anary Report;
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MUR63I4(GmgmmewnforCongm)
Conciliation Agreement
Page 3 of 5

however, the activity duﬁngthesamepeﬁodwase\}enmly disclosed in the 2010 July Quarterly
Report originally filed on June 10, 2010 and later amended on Jime 11 and June 20, 2010.
| Content of D ts

6. TheActwquimspoﬁﬁedcommimwrepontheamouMofcash-on-handathe
beginning of the reporting period, as well as identify each person who makes aggregate
contributions in excess of $200 in an clectien cycle. 2USC. § 434(b)(1) and (3). Commission
reguirtions farther ciarify that commitires whizh vl cash-on-hand at the time of thelr
:egrslnnonshlld:sclouthesoummnfsuuhﬁmdsonmmﬁntmpm 11 C.F.R. § 104.12.
mmmMumMmpommsdoseﬁnmummwwofommmngdebtsmd
obligations owed by the palitical committee. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8).

7. Mr. Brown deposited the initial funds in the Committee’s account, and thereafter the
Committoe ran a negative balance. TheCorpmiune"sﬁrstlep-ottlﬁled with the Commission, the
2010 April Quarterly Report, discloses an initial cash belance of $10,000, but does not disclose
M. Brown as the souroe of that initial cash balance. The Amended 2010 Apeil Quarterly Report
also discloses a negative ending cash-on-hand balance of $54,118.45, and does not disclose any

. debts ar obligations.

V. 1. Respondents viainted 2 U.S.C. § 433(a) by fling the Statement of
Organization 76 days late.
2. Respondents violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a) by filing the 2010 Apil Quarterly
Report 56 days late and by fuiling to file the 2010 12-Day Pre-Primary Report.
3. Respondents violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 C.FR. § 104.12 by failing to
disclose an initial $10,000 contribution from Mr. Bmwﬁ and thereafter failing to accurately
report ts cash-on-hand and debt on its 2010 April Quarterly Report.
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MUR.6314 (Gregory Brown for Congress)

Page 4 of S
VI L Inoxdmarycmummnm,theComm:ssxonwouldseekasubsmdlyhngher

clvnlpennltybasedonthewolanonsouﬂmedmthlsagreement. However, theCommnssxonls '
taking into account the fact that the Committee is defunct, has no cash on hand according to the
evidence available, and has a limited ability to raise any additional funds. Respondents will pay
a civil penalty to the Commission in the amount of $4,'500,pu.rsmntt02U..S.C. § 437g(a)(S)XB).

2. Respondents wﬂlmmddslstcmnmlthng violations o2 U.S.C. §§ 433(a),
434(a), and 434(b), and 11 CF.R. § 104. 12

3. Rupmdeﬁswdlmendthemlevamdlsclosmerepomtoaocumlyreﬂect
the contribution from Mr. Bmwnanddeblsmdohhgm:onsrefemcedatpamgmphslv7md
V.3 within 30 days.

VIL The Commission, on request of anyone filing a complaint under 2 U.S.C.

. § 437g(a)(1) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review compliance

with this agreement. If the Commission believes that this agreement or any requiremerit thereof
has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Coutt for
the Distriot of Columbia. | |
. VIII This agreement shall become eMective a8 of ths date that all partics bercto have

executed same mmd the Commission has approved the éntire agreement. '

IX. Respondents skall bave ne mogs than 30 days fiom the diita this agreement bosamds
effective to oom;ilywiﬁmnd implement-the requirements coxtained in this agreement and to so
notify the Commission.
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X. ThisConciﬁaﬁmAmuneMconsﬁmwsﬂ:éenﬁmagteemembetweenthepaﬁeson

ﬁwmﬂersmisedhmeiﬂ,mdmotﬁersmtemmgpmmise,magtmengdﬂmwﬁuenmm

n_mdebyeitherpartyorbyagentsofeitherpmy,ﬂiatiénotcontaimdwithinﬂﬁswritten

agreement shall be enforceable.
FOR THE COMMISSION:

P. Christopher Hughey

G

e Knﬂﬂaenﬁmth

Acting Associate General Counsel

9-16-1/

é%.g 2y.201
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
RESPONDENTS: ~ Gregory Brown for Congress and MUR: 6314
Carol Banginger, in her offinial
capacity as treasurer
Gregory Brown
L GENERATION OF MATTER
This matter was generated based on information ascertained by the Federal Election
Commission (“Cowrnission™) in the mormal course of carrying out its supszvisory
responsibilitiss, see 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(2), and by a complaint filed with the Commigsion by
Melanie Sloan and Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington.
II.- FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
A. Factual Background
Gregory Brown was a candidate in the June 8, 2010, South Carolina primary election,
seeking the Democratic nomination to represent the state’s Sixth Congressional District in the
U.S. House of Representatives. On February 1, 2010, Mr. Brown filed a Statement of Candidacy
with the Commission that designated Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her
official capucity as treasurer, (“Committee™) ay his principal campaign committee. The

~ Cemnittee filed its Statrment of Orgauimtion on April 26, 2010:

The Committee hes filed the following disclasure reporta with the Commission:
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Factual & Legal Analysis

Page 2 of 7

Table 1. Reports Filed with the Commission
Date Report
6/10/10 | April Quarterly Report
6/10/10 | July Quarterly Report
6/11/10 | July Quarterly Repart (Amended)
6/20/10 ;| April Quarterly Repart (Amended)
6/20/10 | July Quarterly Report (Amended) |
7/28/10 | Termination Report ‘
11/7/10 | Termination Report
1/4/11 Termination Report
2/9/11 Termination Repsrt

The Committee attempted to terminate after Mr. Brown lost the primary election, but the Reports
Analysis Division (“RAD”) informed the Committee that it needed to resalve outstanding
discrepancies in its reports before it could terminate.

1. MURG6314

Complainant alleges that Respondents knowingly and willfully violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 434(a)(2)(A)(i), (iii) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.5(a)(1)(i), (2)(i) by failing to file both the 2010 April
Quarterly and 12-Day Pre-Primary Reports.

Resporrdents admit that the disclosure reports were untimely. Respondents maintain that
any delays in filing the required reports were “rot the result of any intentional or willful
misconduct,” and thoy have filed all required reports. See Response. Without providing
specific information, Respondents alaim that they mistnkenly nelied on informatiom provided by
the state political paty. They also claim, again without providing any specific informatian, to
have relied on information the Commissian provided to them regarding filing requirements.
Respondents further claim that they relocated their campaign headquarters, which resulted in lost

mail and “temporary loss of full communication.” Jd.

! There is no record of the Committee contacting RAD until July 27, 2010, after it had filed the Amended
2010 April axd Jsly Quarterly Bzports.
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MUR 6305/RR 10L-09 (Gregory Brown for Congress, et al.)
Factual & Legal Analysis
Page 3 of 7

2. RR 10L-09
On July 1, 2010, RAD sent the Committee two Requests for Additional Information
(“RFAI’s”) regarding the 2010 April and July Quarterly Reports, respectively. The Committee
has not yet filed a response to these RFAI’s; however, the Committee’s treasurer contacted a
RAD Analyst on july 27, 2010, to inquire about the process for terminating. Befween September
3, 2010, and September 28, 2010, RAD Analysts made several attempts to contiict the .
Conmmnittee tommotify them of potential Cormnission antion. Hewever, as the Comimittee’s phone
numbers and e-mail addresses were ne longer in service, RAD left a messago at Mt. Brown’s
business, Keystone Enterprises, which was not returned.
On October 18, 2010, RAD referred the Committee to the Office of General Counsel for
the following reporting violations:
o Failing to correct an initial cash balance of $10,000 on its 2010 April Quarterly
Report, to first disclomire report filed with the Commission. Both the original
and Amended April Quarterly Reports reflect this balance, and neither includes a
suppoiting schedule disclosing the source of this initial balaace.
o Failing to correct a negative ending cash-on-hand balance on its April 2010
Quarterly Report. The April Quarterly Report filed on June 10, 2010, discloses a
negative ending cash-on-hand balance of $35,164.65; the amrended report, filed
ten days later, discloses a negative ending cash-on-hand balance of $54,118.45.
o Failing to comrept a:cash-ox-hand balamme wéiserepancy betwr=i two consecutive
reponts: while the Amended 2010 April Quarterly Repoit disclares a negative
ending cash-on-hantl balence of $54,118.45, tize 2010 July Quartkrly Repert

discloses a beginning cash-on-hand balance of $0.00. The Amended 2010 July
Quarterly Reparts also disclose a $0.00 beginning cash-on-hand balance.

On December 16, 2010, the Committee responded to the notification of the :eferral by
contending that the candidmte demosited the axiginid finads in the nmrnpaign account, and
thereafter the campaign ran a negative balance to be paid by the candidate himself. The
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Committee acknowledges that there may have been accounting defects, but asserts that there was
no inappropriate use of funds.

B.  Legal Analysis

Under the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (“the Act”), an individual
becomes a candidate for federal office when his or her campaign exceeds $5,000 in contributions
or experditures. 2 U.S.C. § 431(2). Based on its Amended 2010 April Quarterly Report, it
appeuars tlint the Committee exceeded the $5,000 threshwild on Februarny 2, 2010, when it meade a
$10,000 disbussement to Stevan Fooshe & Aseaciates for a “compaign questionnaire.”
Acoardingly, Mr. Brown was a candidate for federal office on February 2, 2010, which was the °
day after the Commission received Mr. Brown’s Statement of Candidacy.

1. MUR 6314: Timeliness of Disclosure Reports

Political committee treasurers are required to file reports of receipts and disbursements in
accordance with 2 U.S.C. § 434(a). A principal campaign committee of a candidate for the U.S.
House of Representatives, in any calendar year during which there is a regularly scheduled
election for which its candidate is secking election, shall file quarterly reports no later than the
15th dey after ¥ae Iast day of vach calandar quarten. 2 U.S.C. § 438(a)(2){A)(iii). Furthermore,
sunh committee shall file a pre-shsction report no luser then the 12th day befure any eleotion in
which such candidate in apicing ebeotion. 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2XA)(0).

The Camemittee was required to file the 2010 April Quarterly Report by April 15, 2010.
However, the Committee actually filed this report, which disclosed $400 in receipts and

$45,564.65 in disbursements (later amended to $64,518.45 in disbursements), on June 10, 2010 -

2 Although the Amended 2010 April Quarterly Report discloses the $10,000 disbursement on February 2,
2010, it disdlsses orly $400 in coneribations for tire entire reporting period, in addition ta the initial $10,000 cash
balance. It is possible that the Committee may have exceeded the $5,000 contribution threshold before February 2,
2010, throngh an undisclosed transaction, but there is no infarmation to indicate the nature or amonnt of this
potential undisclosed transaction.
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56 days late. Similarly, the Committee was also required to file a report no later than twelve
days before the June 8, 2010, primary in which Mr. Brown was a candidate. This report, due
May 27, 2010, should have covered the period from April 1, 2010, to May 19, 2010. To date, the
Committee has not filed this report; however, the same period of activity was eventually covered
by the 2010 July Quarterly Report, which disclosed $300 in receipts (later amended to $24,300)
and $20,504.72 in disbursements (later amesded to $39,366.89) that should have been disclosed
on the pre-primary report.

Adtheugh the Committee failed to timely file the 2010 April Quarterly Report and failed
to file the 2010 12-Day Pre-Primary Report, there is no information to indicate elther that these
violations were knowing and willful, or that the candidate, Mr. Brown, was personally liable for
the Committee’s failure to file timely disclosure reports. Accordingly, the Commission finds
reason to believe that Gregory Brown for Congress and Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity
as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(A)i) and (iii). The Commission aiso finds no reason
to believe that Gregory Brown violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(a)(2)(A)(i) and (iii).

2. RR 10L-09: Content of Disclosure Reports

The Act requires political committees to report the amount of cash-on-hand at the
beginning of the reporting period, as well as identify each person who makes aggregate
contributions in excess of $200 in an election cycle. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(1), (3). Commission
regulations further clarify that committees which have cash-on-hand at the time of their
registration shall disclose the sources of such funds on their first report. 11 C.F.R. § 104.12.
Based on the information provided in the referral, the response, and the Committee’s disclosure
reports, it appears that Mr. Brown initially made a personal $10,000 contribution to the
Committee, which the Committee disclosed as an initial cash balance on its first report.
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However, by failing to disclose Mr. Brown as the source of its initial $10,000 cash balance, the
Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.12.

The Act also requires that reports disclose the amount and nature of outstanding debts
and obligations owed by the political committee. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(8). Based on the referral,
the response, and disclosure reports, it appears that the Committee incurred $34,118.45 in debt
and reported it as a negative cash balance instead of as a debt or obligation. By failing to
disclose this $54,118.45 as debt, the Committee violsted 2 U;S.C. § 434(bX(8).

Finally, the discrepancy between the ending ensh-on-harx balance on the Avannded 2010
April Quarterly Report (-$54,118.45) and the beginning cash-on-hand balance on the 2010 July
Quarterly Report ($0.00) could indicate that the Committee failed to disclose all contributions,
offsets, and operating expenditures in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(7). However, it appears that
this discrepancy is attributable to the misreported debt discussed above: if the Committee had
reported $54,118.45 as debt on its Amended 2010 April Quarterly Report, its ending cash-on-
hand balance would be $0.00, which would match the beginning cash-on-hand balance reported
in the 2010 July Quarterly Report. Th;:s, the discrepancy does not appear to be a separate
violation of 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(7). Accordingly, the Commission finds reason to believe that
Gregory Brown for Congseers and Carol Bawsingar, in her efiieial capanity 28 troemrer, wiolairel
2U.S.C. § 434(b)(1), (3), and (8) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.12.

3. Late Statement of Qrganization

Based on the information in its disclosure reports, the Committee appears to have filed its
Statement of Organization late. A candidate’s authorized principal campaign committee is
required to file a Statement of Organization within ten days of designation. 2 U.S.C. § 433(a).
Mr. Bn-)wn designated the Committee as his principal campaign committee on February 1, 2010;
therefore, the Committee should have filed its Statement of Organization by February 11, 2010.
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Instead, the Committee filed its Statement of Organization on April 26, 2010 — 74 days late.
Accordingly, the Commission finds reason to believe that Gregory Brown for Congress and

Carol Bausinger, in her official capacity as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 433(a).
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